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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of R Retail Ventures Private Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) as
amended in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its loss including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements’ section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, which is expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed we conclude that there is material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Kolkata, Delhi NCR, Mumbai, Chennai, Bangalore, Pune & Raipur



' ° B2 402B, Marathon Innova, 4th Floor
Zn l 0. Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel
Mumbai - 400 013 (India)
Chartered Accountants +91(0) 22 6662 5537/ 5538
mumbai@singhico.com

When we read the other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to management and determine the
actions under the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the linancial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless Management and Board of Directors either intends to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i. Ildentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

concern.

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of the misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

ii. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

Kolkata, Delhi NCR, Mumbai, Chennai, Bangalore, Pune & Raipur



Y y B2 402B, Marathon Innova, 4th Floor
Zn l 0. Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel
Mumbai - 400 013 (India)
+91(0) 22 6662 5537/ 5538
mumbai@singhico.com

Chartered Accountants

o

. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

—h

With respect to adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with
reference to these financial statements as on March 31, 2025 and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report;

g. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act,
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 on ‘Overall maximum managerial remuneration and
managerial remuneration in case of absence or inadequacy of profits’ is not applicable as this being a
private Company.

. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

>

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statement. Refer note 35 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, except as disclosed
in the Note 49(10) to the Financial Statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries) with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, either directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, except as disclosed
in the Note 49(10) to the Financial Statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, either directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
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vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account for the year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance
of audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per

the statutory requirements for record retention.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Milind Agal
Partner

Membership Number: 123314
UDIN: 25123314BMLLAZ2493

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025
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Annexure — A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph (i) with the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date of R Retail Ventures Private Limited)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and

belief, we report that:

In respect of its Property, Plant and Equipment:

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets in the books of the Company and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(i}(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable

intervals. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
operations of the Company and no material discrepancies were noticed during the verification.

c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee

and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) as disclosed in note 4 to the
financial statements included in Investment Property Under Construction are held in the name of the

Company.

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use Assets)

during the year ended March 31, 2025.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no proceedings initiated or are

pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Property Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

a) The management has conducted physical verification. of inventory including inventory lying with third
parties at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies were noticed.

b) As disclosed in note 19 and 46 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks and financial institutions
during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records
examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial statements, company is not required to
submit the quarterly returns/statements with such banks and financial institutions.

According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has not given
any security and guarantee, however, it has made investments in and granted unsecured loans and
advances in the nature of loans to Companies in respect of which, our comments are as under:

a) the Company has provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, to Companies, Firms and
any other parties during the year as in respect of which the requisite information is as below.
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(Rs. In Lakhs
Advance in

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans nature of
loans

=1

Aggregate amount during the ye
-Subsidiaries - - 1,928.00 -
-Joint ventures - - - -
-Associates - - -
-Others - - 31,159.88
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
-Subsidiaries - - 4,520.31 -
-Joint ventures - - - -

-Associates - - -
-Others - - 64,520.92 -

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made, and the terms and conditions of the grant of all
loans and advances in the nature of loans and investment in Companies provided during the year are,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. Interest free loans of Rs. 33,087.88 lakhs,
have been given to related parties.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in respect of loans and advances given in the nature of loan granted to
Companies and other parties, the principal is repayable on demand. As informed to us, the Company
has demanded and received repayment of the loan during the year. Thus, there has been no default
on the part of the party to whom the money has been lent.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no overdue in respect of loans granted to such companies, as these
loans are repayable on demands, and such loans thereon have not been demanded for repayment as

on date.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the company has not granted any loans which has fallen due during the year.
Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue loans that existed as at the

beginning of the year.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and as disclosed in note 12 to the financial
statement, in our opinion the Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans repayable
on demand to the related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) for the following loans or advances:
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(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars All Promoter | Related
Parties Parties Parties
Sec 2 (76)
of the Act

Aggregate amount of loans / advances in the
nature of loan

- Repayable on demand (A) 33,087.88 - | 33,087.88
-Agreement does not specify any terms or - - -
period of Repayment (B)
Total (A+B) 33,087.88 -| 33,087.88
Percentage of loans / advances in nature of 100% 100%
loan to the total loans

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records
of the Company, the company is a private limited company and satisfies the conditions for exemption
from the provisions of section 185 prescribed in the notification dated June 05, 2015 by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs. As the company is engaged in providing infrastructural facilities as specified in
Schedule VI of the Act, provisions of section 186 except sub-section (1) of the Act are not applicable to
the Company. Accordingly, company has complied with the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 186
of the Act in respect of investments made in company, as applicable.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or amount which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) rules 2014 (as amended).

vi. The Central Government has specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Act for certain classes of companies. However, based on the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014, the requirement to maintain cost records is not applicable to the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025, as its turnover for the immediately preceding financial year did
not meet the prescribed threshold of ¥35 Crores. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us:

a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed
by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year
end, for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,

sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute except as stated below:
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Nature of Statue Nature of the dues | Amount in Dispute | Period to which the | Forum where
(Rs in lakhs) amount relates dispute is pending |

Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 65.65 2021-22 Commissioner of

1961 Income Tax
(Appeals)

Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 29.57 2022-23 Commissioner of

1961 Income Tax
(Appeals)

Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 58.30 2023-24 Commissioner of

1961 Income Tax
(Appeals)

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable

to the Company.

ix. a) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) Basis the information and explanation provided to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement to
report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and
on an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised
on short term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not taken funds from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (ix)(e) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries. Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

x. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not raise any money during the year by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, the requirement to report under
paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
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shares/ fully or partly or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit. Accordingly, the
requirement to report under paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year. -

b) According to the information and explanations given to us during the year, no report under sub-
section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us
by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company

during the year.

xii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and
hence requirement to report under paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us , the Company is a private company and is
thus not required to establish an Audit Committee as prescribed under section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Further, as explained to us, the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

xiv. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and nature of its business.

b) The Internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audit have been considered by us.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with its directors. Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3(xv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3 (xvi)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph
3 (xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no CIC in the Group. Accordingly,
the requirement to report under paragraph 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has incurred the cash losses in the current financial year
amounting to Rs 656.70 Lakhs and has incurred cash losses in immediately preceding financial year
amounting to Rs 539.17 Lakhs.

xviii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report under paragraph 3 (xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (also
refer note 38 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable
of meeting Its liabilities exlsting at the date of balance shieel as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, further, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

xx. Basis the requirements as stipulated by the provisions of section 135, the Company does not have
adequate net profits, which requires any CSR spends to be undertaken. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a)
and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Milind Agal

Partner

Membership Number: 123314
UDIN: 25123314BMLLAZ2493

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the financial statements of R
Retail Ventures Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph (ii)(f) under the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of R Retail Ventures Private
Limited (‘the Company’) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI'. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Kolkata, Delhi NCR, Mumbai, Chennai, Bangalore, Pune & Raipur
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial Statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial Statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations’ of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Milind Agal

Partner

Membership Number: 123314
UDIN: 25123314BMLLAZ2493

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Balance Sheet

as at March 31, 2025

Z in Lakhs
ASSETS -
- Non-current Assets o
{a). Property, Plant and Equipment 47.54
- {b) Right-of-use asset 94.11
~[e] Investment Froperty Under Construction 15948.16
(d)  Investments in Subsidiaries - 1.05
(g) Financial Assets S )
— (i Loans . 27.991.00
- (i) Other Financial Assets o 52.00
{fl Non-cument Tax Assets - - 82219
{al Defemed Tox Assets (net] 3 33.57
_ Total Non-cument Assets B 44,989.62
___ Current Assets - - o
~{g) Inventories S 63,689.35
(B) Financial Assets o o o o
{il Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,800.42
i) Bank Balances other than (i) above B B 33.18
(i} Loans 39.481.00
(iv) Other Financial Assefs 4,433.90
(c) Other Cumrent Assets 7,446.20
Total Current Assets 1,19,884.05
Total Assets 1,64,873.67
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY _
(@) Equity Share Capital 40,622.00
[b) Other Equity 4,353.32
Total Equity 44,975.32
LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabllitles
{a)  Financial Liabilities
(il Lease Liabilifies -
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 21,000.00
~[b] Provisions ) S 51.08
Total Non-cument Liabilities 21,051.08
Current Liabilities —
{a) Fnancial Liabilities
(il Borrowings -
(il Lease Liabilities 99.43
fiiy Trade Payables
_ total oufstanding dues of micro enterprises and 293.19
small enterprises i
_ total outstanding dues of creditors other than 2935.57
micro entferprises and small enterprises T
[iv) Other Financial Liabilities 3.66
(b} Other Current Liabilities - 95.508.62
[c]  Provisions 6.80
Total Current Liabllities 98.,847.27
Total Liabilities ) o . 1,19,898.35
Total Equity and Liabilities N 1,64,873.67

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Arm Registration No.: 30204%E

//'\'.:_\-T as p,
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nd Agal
Partner
Membership No.; 123314

Place : Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
R Retail Ventures Private Limited
CIN: 0MH2018PTC313615

/@m.b“*

Sujata Rao Bafna Sanjay Jha
Director Director Company Secretary
DIN: 03478837 DIN: 02107767 M. No. A60793

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025



R Retall Ventures Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2025

% in Lakh
-y Y = | r‘q
e —a! e
Income
Revenue from Operations 76.70
Other Income 274.43
Total Income 351.13
Exp
Cost of consiruction and development expenses o 21.336.90
Changes in inventories of construcfion work-in-progress | 21,336.90,
Employee Benefits Expenses B R 510.92
Finance Cosis I —
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2.53
OtherExpenses . 37897
Tofal Expenses o 892.83
Profit / (Loss) before tax R . (541.70)
Tax (Expenses)/Credit
Current tax -
Deferred tax (213.41)
Total Tax (Expenses)/Credit (213.41)
Profit / (Loss) for the year (755.11)
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Remeasuremen| Gain / (Loss) on defined benefit plan 7.51
Income tax impact (1.89)
Total Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) that will not be reclassified 5.62
1o profit or loss In subsequent periods, net of tax .
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (749.49)
Earnings Per Equity Share (EPS) (0.19)
Baslc and Diluted (%) (Face Value ¥ 10 Per Share) :
Material accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Singhi & Co. R Refall Ven Private Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN: 18PTC313615
Firm Regfstriition No.: 302049E \l
@ Nang™ ¥
Su sl Bafna Sanjay Jha
Director Birector Company Secretary
Membership No.: 123314 DIN: 03478837 DiN: 02107767 M. No. A60793

Place : Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025

Place : Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025



R Retqil Ventures Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended March 31, 2025

2 in Lakhs

(A) Cash flows from oru_tjp_g acv_lﬂs

Profit/(Loss) before fax ) (541.70)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax fo net cash flows:
Depreciation and Amortisation Experises 2,53
Finance cost ' 0.41
Finance income B (254.85)
Gain on derecognistion of lease e - -
 Sundry baolances w/back - B 6.34
~ Provision for Graluity B 1 8.85
Provision for Leave Encashment 4.09
Operating cash flow before working capital changes . (774.33)
Changes in working capital:
Increase /{decrease| in Trade Fayables B  (145.75)
Increase /(dec ) in Other Financial Liabilifies 20,9324]
Increase /(decrease) in Other Current Liabilities R - 40,992.69
~ Increase /|decrease] in Provisions B B B D (6.44)
(increase)/decrease in Inveniories (2108217
_lincrease)/decrecse in Other Curent and Non-cument Assets N 50405
(Increase)/decrease in Curent and Non-cument Financial Assets (146.25)
i . 41,068.54
Cash flows from operating activities 40,294.19

Less : Income fox (Paid) - (116.37)
Net cash flows generaed from operating activities (A) 40,177.82
(B) Cash flows from investing activities )

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4.68)

Payments for investment properties under construction (1,099.57)

Proceeds from sale / (purchase] of investment in subsidiaries B 2.00

Inter corporate deposit given to subsidiary

Redemption/(increcse) of bank depaosits

Interest received (finance income)
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities (B)
(C) Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Principol element of lease paymenis

Proceeds / (Repayment) of current borrowinas (nef)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (C)
Net Increase / (Decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

(42,474.00)

(10.15)
(138.41)

Notes:
(i) The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' set out in Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows.
(i) Disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from financing activifies, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-

% in Lakhs Z in Lakhs

Notes to Cash flow Statement :
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following :

Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 12) o 4,800.42
Balances as per statement of cash flows 4,800.42
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Singhi & Co. R Retail Ventures Private Limited

Chartered Accountants CIN: U70201 18PTC313615

g

- Yogesh Bafna Sanjay Jha
Partner .\ A E Director Company Secretary
Membership No.: 123314 DIN: 03478837 DIN: 02107767 M. No. A60793

Place : Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025




R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended March 31, 2025
T in Lakhs

Balance at the beginning of reporting year 40,42,20,000 40,622.00 36,354.90 (31,252.09) 5,102.81
Profit/(Loss) for the year - . - {755.11) (755.11)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the

year —

Remeasurement Gain/(loss) on defined benefit

plan, net of tax fosl | h - 5162 62
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - (749.49)  (749.49)
Balance as ot March 31,2024 | 406220000 4062200  34354.90  (32,001.58) 4,353.32
Profit/(Loss] for the year - - - (196.15) (196.15)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the

year S S

Remeasurement Gain/(loss) on defined benafit . i — -
plan, net of tax ’ ’
Total Comprehersive Income for the year | - | - (187.46 (187.46

Balance as at March 31, 2025

The accompanying notfes are an Integral part of the financiol statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Singhi & Co. R Retall Ve s Private Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN: 18PTC313415
Firm Regis

frafion No.: 302049

Pchl

Sujata Rao sh Bafna Sanjay Jha
Director Director Company Secretary
DIN: 03478837 DIN: 02107767 M. No. A60793

Milind Agal
Partner
Membership No.: 123314

Place: Mumbai

Place : Mumbai
Date: August 25, 2025

Date: August 25, 2025




R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

1.1

1.2

Background

R Retail Ventures Private Limited {“the Company"} is a private company domiciled in India and is incorporated on éth
September, 2018 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is
situated at Runwal and Omkar Esquare, Sth Floor, Off. Eastern Express Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East),
Mumbai - 400022. The Company is engaged primarily in the business of real estate construction, development, other related
activities for residential premises and leasing of commercial premises.

Summary of Material Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied 1o all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

(a) Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) noftified under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 133 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20151 and other relevant provisions of
the Act.

(b) Histarical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value.

(c)._Preparation of financial statement
As per the format prescribed under Division Il of Schedule !l to the Companies Act, 2013, the Company presents the Balance
Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cashflow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity.

(d) Current - non cumrent classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Standalone Balance Sheet based on curent/ non-current classification.

An asset is freated as cument when it is:

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

i) Held primarily for the purpose of frading

i)y Expected to be redlised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

i} It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

i} It is held prmarily for the purpose of trading

iii) 1t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the setllement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-cumrent.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-curent assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their redlisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The operating cycle of the Company's real estate operations varies from project to project depending on the
size of the project, type of development, project complexities and related approvals. Accordingly, project related assets
and liabilities are classified into cument and non-current based on the operating cycle of the project. All other assets and
liabilities have been classified into current and non-current based on a period of twelve months.




R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

(e) Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") nofifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time 1o fime.

The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) nofified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide nofification dated August 12, 2024,
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual reporting
periods beginning on or after April 01, 2024,

On September 09, 2024, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 116 concerning sale and leaseback
fransactions.

The amendments to Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Raies specify how an enfity should assess whether
a currency is exchongeable and how it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeabiity is lacking. The
amendments also require disclosure of information that enables users of ifs financial statements to undersiand how the
cumency not being exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity's financial
performance, financial position and cash flows. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2025. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative information.

The amendments did not have a material impact on the financial statements.

(f). Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (“INR"} which is also the functional currency of the Company. All values
are rounded off to the nearest lakhs.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision

maker.
The board of directors assesses the financial performance and position of the Company, and makes strategic decisions.

Refer note 36 for segment information.
Foreign currency franslations
(a) Functional and presentation currency

items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the functional cumrency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is R Retail
Ventures Private Limited's functional and presentation cumrency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign cumency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such fransactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cumencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in

profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equioment are siated at ocquisifion cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes acquisition cost of asset (net of refundable taxes) and any attributable cost
to bring the asset to working condifions for ifs intendead use.

Subsequent cosls are included in the asset's carrying amournit, as appropriate, only when it is probable thal future economic
benefits associated with the iterm will flow to the Company and fhe cost of the item can be measured reliably. The camying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate assef is derscognizad when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporfing period in which they are incurred,

Guains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/ (losses).

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as
‘Capital work-in-progress'.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the Straight Line Method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which
are in line with Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual values
are net more than 5% of the original cost of assets. The Company has used the following lives to provide depreciation and

amarfisation;

Nature of the asset Useful life
Furniture and Fixlures 10 years
Piant And Machinery. 15 years
Office Equipment 5years
Computers 3vyears




R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity expects to
use the assets beyond the lease term.

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's camying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

v Investiment property under construction

Investment properties are properties that are held to earn rentals and /or for capital appreciation and not occupied by the
Company for its own use. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs and net of
recoverable taxes. The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs if recognition criteria are met. When
significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as
incurred. Subsequent tfo inifial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Investment properties (Land) which is in the name of the Company are stated at cost where the Company undertakes
construction of commercial premises. Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises
of expenditures incurred in respect of capital projects under development and includes any attibutable / allocable cost
and other incidental expenses. Revenues earned, if any, from such capital project before capitalisation are adjusted

against the capital work in progress.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are being occupied by the
Company for its own use or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carmying amount of the asset is recognized in
profit or loss in the period of de-recognition.

vi Impairment of assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's camying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are iargely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each

reporting period.

vii Investment in subsidiary
An entity is termed as a subsidiary if the company controls the entity. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee.

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiary are camied at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the camying amount of investment is assessed and an impairment provision is recognised, if
required immediately fo its recoverable amount. On disposal of such investment, difference between the net disposal
proceeds and camying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

viii Inventories

Direct expenditure relating to Real Estate Development activity is inventorized. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs)
during construction period is inventorized to the extent the expenditure is directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its infended use. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period
which is not directly attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use is charged to the statement
of profit and loss. Direct and other expenditure is determined based on specific identification to the construction and real
estate activity. Cost incurred/ items purchased specifically for projects are taken as consumed as and when incurred/

received.

a. Inventories comprise of: {i) Realty Work in Progress representing properties under construction /development
b. Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net redlisable value.

c. Cost of Realty construction / development is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in proportion to the revenue
recognised during the period and the balance cost is caried over under Inventory as part of either Realty Work in Progress
or Finished Realty Stock. Cost of Realty construction / development includes all costs directly related to the Project (including
finance cost attributable to the project) and other expenditure as identified by the Management which are incurred for the
purpose of executing and securing the completion of the Project {net off incidental recoveries / receipts) upto the date of
receipt of Occupation Certificate of Project from the relevant authorities.

Realty Work in Progress includes cost of land, premium for development rights, transferable development rights (TDR),
construction costs, allocated interest and expenses incidental to the projects undertaken by the Company.

(O Wei redlizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion ond —
Oe firated costs necessary to make the sale. e




R Retdail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

ix.

Revenue recognition

a. The Company has applied five step model as set out in Ind AS 115 to recognise revenue in this Financial Statements:

Step 1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that
creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a
customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for transfering promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of

third parties.

Step 4. Allocate the fransaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one
performance obligation, the Group will allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that
depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitied in exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.

Step 5. Recognise revenue when {or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's performance as the
Company performs; or

- The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

- The Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at
which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at point of time and over a period of time based on the conditions in the contracts with
customers.

The specific revenue recognition criteria are described below:

(i) Income from Property Development

The Company has determined that the existing terms of the contract with customers does not meet the criteria to recognise
revenue over d period of time. Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of residential and
commercial units as and when the controlis passed on to the customers which is linked to the receipt of occupancy

certificate and on issuing the possession letter of the property.

(i) Sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights
Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights as and

when the controlis passed on to the customers.

{iii) Interest income
Interestincome is accounted on an accrual basis at effective interest rate (EIR method).

(iv) Rental Income
Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted over the lease terms.

(v) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established.

b. Contract balances

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due,
a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company fransfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the

contract.




R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

X

xi

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the taxable income of the cument period based on
the applicable income tax rates adjusted by changes in defered tax assets and liabilities attibutable to temporary

differences and unused tax losses.

Current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situafions in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax freatment. The Company measures its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax is provided full, using the lidbility method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carmying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
{and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is reclised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and when the deferred tax balances relate fo the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settie on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Leases

As a Lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a comesponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available
for use by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates the
consideration in the confract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of real estate for which the Company is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

- Fixed payments (including in - substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

- Amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

- The exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

- Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that option.

As a Lessor
Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are diso included in the measurement of the

liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,

which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental bomrowing rate is used, being the rate that

the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use

asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:

- Where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received

- Uses a build - up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by R Retail Ventures

Private Limited, which does not have recent third party financing, and

- Make adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual iessee (through recent financing or market data)
which has a 'similar payment profile to the lease, then the Company use that rate as a starting point to determine the
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liakility for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- The amount of the inifial measurement of lease liability

- The lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
- any initial direct costs, and

- restoration costs.
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Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line

basis.
If the company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase opfion, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying

asset's useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-vaiue assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. The Company has elected to
apply the practical expedient for short term and low-value assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Financial Instruments

Other financial assets

(a) Classification
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss),

and

* those measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the company business model for managing the financial asset and contractual terms of the

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss or other comprehensive
income.

(b) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets are recognised inifially at fair value in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attibutable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) Subseguent measurement

After initial recognition, financial assets are measured at:

« Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
Other Income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other gains/{losses). Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the Statement of

Profit and Loss.

« Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FYOClL.Movements in the camying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impaiment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financiat
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/{losses) and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in statement of profit and loss.

« Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FYOCI are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains/{losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in otherincome.

(d) Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised only when:

» The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

 Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to
pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the
Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing

involverment in the financial asset.
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(e) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets camied at amortised
cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 31
details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

(f) Income recognition
Interestincome:

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income within other income.
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as part of otherincome.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross camying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate
is applied to the net camying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

xiv Financial liabilities and equity insfruments
(a) Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(b) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless ot initial recognition, they are classified as fair value

through profit and loss.
(c) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities
caried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL
are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

A Compulsory Convertible Non-Cumulative Preference Shares {CCPS) issued by the Company is classified as a financial
liability Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative preference shares contain an embeded derivative which is not closely
related to host debt contract. Accordingly, the company has elected to measure the financial liability at their fair values

through profit and loss.
(d) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially
measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of (i) the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model as per Ind AS 109 and (i} the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of
income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that would be required without the guarantee,
or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

(e) Derecoanilion

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is freated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, unless it is in the nature of equity contribution by parent.
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(f) Ofisetiing of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and setile the liabilities simultaneously. The legaily enforceable right must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of defauit, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Bomowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the agreement is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the camying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished and the
consideration paid, is recognised in statement of profit or loss as other gains/({losses).

Substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arangement on or before the end of the reporting
period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the enfity does not classify the
liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for
issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use

or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Trade payables and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade and other financial liabilities are presented as curent liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months
after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.
Employees Benefits

(i) Short-term obligafions

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees'
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities

are settled.

(ii) Other long-term emplovee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments
to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit
credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settiement is expected to

occur.
(iii) Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
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(a) Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible employees in accordance
with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at refirement,
death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the

tenure of employment.

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is computed on the basis of an actuarial valuation by an actuary
appointed for the purpose as per projected unit credit method at the end of each financial year.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on Govemnment bonds that have terms approximating to the
terms of the related obligation.

The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is
included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised
in the period in which they occur directly in Other Comprehensive Income. They are included in retained earnings in the
Statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately the Statement of Profit and Loss as past service cost.

(b) Defined contribution plans

Contribution fowards provident fund for all employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no
further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Confribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further
obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

Provisions and confingent liabilities

(a)_Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setile the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
These are reviewed at each reporting period and reflect the best current estimate.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settiement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due fo the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

(b) Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligafion arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attibutable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

i Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
* the profit/ {loss) attributable to owners of the Company.
* by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements

in a right issue to existing shareholders
ordinary shares issued during the year, if any
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(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

« the afterincome tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
» the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion

dilutive potential equity shares.

xxii Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest 'Lakhs’ as per the
requirement of Schedule I, unless otherwise stated.

xxiii Critical estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the
Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of
future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Differences between actual
results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date
but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.

The areas involving critical estimates are:

Useful lives of depreciable property, plant and equipment (Refer note 2)

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the
expected usage of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may
change the usage of certain assets.

Defined benefit obligation (Refer note 18, 23 & 34)

The cost of defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation along with leave salary are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions such as standard rates of
inflation, mortality, discount rate, attition rates and anticipation of future salary increases. Due to the complexities involved in
the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurements (Refer note 39)

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes
are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market
participants would price the instrument/assets. Management bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible but
this may not always be available. In that case Management uses the best relevant information available. Estimated fair
values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's length transaction at the reporting date.
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3 Right-of-use asset

i. Gross CnVIue

Balance as at April 1, 2023 545.43
Additions -
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments

Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 545.43
Additions - o -
Disposal / Discarded / Adjustments B o 545.43
~Bdlance as at March 31, 2025 - B -
i. Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2023 S - o 32586
Depreciation charge for the year e _ 12547

Disposal / Adjustments
Balance as at March 31, 2024 451.33
Depreciation charge forthe year S 31.37
Disposal / Adjustments . - 482.70
Balance as at March 31, 2025 T T
Net Carrying Amount

As at March 31, 2024 - -

As at March 31, 2025

The Company has taken office premises on lease. The lease armangement is for a period of 60 months dated 02.12.2019 with a
non-cancellable period of 36 months.

a) Amounts recognised in Balance Sheet
The Balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

% in Lakhs

Right-of-use asset
Office premises

Total

% in Lakhs

Lease liabilities
Non-current
Curmrent

Total

b) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

The Statement of Profit and Loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:
% in Lakhs

Depreciation charge of rigm-ol-us assets
Office premises

Total
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Z in Lakhs

Interest expense (finance costs)

Total

- The lease payments are discounted at 10.45% p.q. rate of interest based on market rate.
- Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising discounted lease rentails.
- Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

(i) Analysis of Lease liability:
% in Lakhs

Opening lease liabilities
Addition during the year

Interest Cost

Cash outilow towards payment of lease liabilities

Deletion during the year on account of termination of lease agreements
Cl'osl'ng lease liabilities

(ii) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities (on undiscounted basis)
% in Lakhs

Less than 1 year
Between 1-5 years
More than § years

(iii) Impact on statement of profit and loss

Interest on lease liabilities
Deprecialion on right of use assets
Net impact on profit before tax
Defered tax - (Charge)/ credit
Net impact on profit after tax
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4 Investment Properties Under Construction (Measured at cost)
i PR ST e o S
i. Gross Carrying Value

Balance as at April 1, 2023 S - 11470031  3,370.61
Additions i - 1,107.42
Balance as at March 31,2024 11,470.13 ~ 4,478.03
Additions S o - - 1 698.26
Reclassification (9.602.22) -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 B 1.8467.91 5,176.29

ii. Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2023 )
Depreciation charge for the year |
Disposal / Adjustments - _
Balance as at March 31, 2024 ) - =
Depreciation charge for the year _ -
Disposal / Adjustments . |
Balance as af March 31, 2025 ) ) - -

Net Carrying Amount S
As at March 31, 2024 ) 11,470.13 4,478.03
As at March 31, 2025 1.867.91 5,176.29

% in Lakhs

Investment property include land and capital work in progress for construction of shopping mall and commercial offices. The
project is located at Pune.

'

Fair Value of Invesiment Properties
The Fair Value measurement for investment property under construction has been categorised as a Level 2 Fair Value based
on the ready reckoner rates for land and cost of construction incumred for buliding.

During previous year, valuation has been conducted through Residual method & Cost comparison method of valuation has
been adopted to armmive at the fair market value of the property by independent valuer registered as defined under rule 2 of
the Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017.

Total fair value of investment property under construction is % 6,291.28 Lakhs and Rs.54,758.55 Lakhs in previous year.

b

=

Investment property under construction ageing schedule
Investment property under construction as at March 31, 2025

698.26 1.107.42 237.34

5,001.18

1,107.42 237.34

14,548.27 |
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5 Investment In Subsldlarles

vn| (fulpal) ) :

Unguote:
a Investments measured at Cost
. Investment In Equity Shares
Histyle Retail Private Limited
10,500 Equity Shares of 2 10 each (FY 10,500 of Rs.10 2ach|
Runwal Retail Frivate Limited
10,000 Equily Shares of ¥ 10 each
Aethon Developers Private Limited
(CY. NIL, P.Y. Nil Equity Shares of Rs.10 each]
Galleria Retail Private Limited
(CY.NIL, P.Y. Nil Equity Shares of Rs.10 each)

Total of Investments measured at Cost

Aggregate amount of unquoted investrments

6 Non-current Loans

ﬂﬁmﬂwﬂﬁ.ﬁﬁéﬁézﬂss&
Infer Corporale Deposits (Refer nole |2 & 33) . e e = 7.991.00

Total

7 Other Non-current Financlal Assets

es o les
Fixed deposits

{With mafurity for mare than twelve months) (Refer note below)

ihc_mhl 1

Total

i} Fixed deposil amounting to Rs.125.41 lakhs held as security against borowings.{PY Nil)

8 Income Taxes
a. The major components of Income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2025

Income Tax Expense :
Curren! Tax:
Curent Income Tax Chorge

Delerred Tax:
In respecl of curent perod arginalior

Total Income Tax Expense

b. Major Components of Deferred Tax Liablilty / Asset (net)

2 in Lakhs

Deferred Tax Assets
Unabsorbed business loss
Employse Benefits Uability

Lease Liabilities

Unabisarbed Daprecialion —————
Gross Deferred Tax Assels

Difference in deprecialion in block of assets:
Net Deferred Tax Assefs

c. Movement in Deferred Tax Liabllity / Asset (net) for the year ended March 31, 2025:

2 in Lakhs
Tax effeci of llems constiluiingDeferred Tax Assets: — -~
_ Unabsorbed business loss N - 46191 | =
Unabsorbed depre: s o los2 = 541 -
Employee Benefils Liability . \4:571 1.5 12.92
_ Lease Liabiliies. S S = 25021 (3502)) =
5031 _ 449.55 | (2.92)
— Hesa) I T
116.54) oz -
33.57 472.47 (2.92)




R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

c. Movement in Deferred Tax Llabllity / Asset (net) for the year ended March 31, 2024:

Tax effee! of llems constilulingDeforred Tax

Unabsorbed business loss 192.41 (192.41}
Unabsorbed deprecialion - 10.52
Provision for gratuify 8.54 7.92
Preliminary expenses 16.02 16.02)
___ Provision for doubliul debls ol 5235 152.35)
Ledss Liakiliies . o - o 25.02 o
26932 |  (217.32)
Tax effect of ltems constitutingDeferred Tax Llabllities: -
Ditference in depreciation in block of assets {20.45) 3.91
) Si—— ___ . ____ __ :_ i __ - (20.45) 3.91
Net Deferred Tax Assets 248.87 | {213.41)

d. Reconclliation of Income Tax Expense and the Accounting Profit multiplied by applicable tax rate :
This note presents the reconcilialion of Income Tax charged as per the applicable tax rate specified in ihe Income Tax Aci, 1961 & the actual
provision made in ihe Financial Sialements as al March 31, 2025 wilh breakup of differences in Profit as per the Financial Statlements and as per
Income Tax Acl, 1961.

2 in Lakhs

Frofit Before Tax as per Slalemenl of Profil & Loss
Tax Rate for-Cﬂrﬂaie-Enliy s per income Tax Acl, 1941

Income lax using the Company’s domeslic jax rale
Tax Effect of:

Detered lax not considered in earlier perod
Others
Income Tax ised in § i of Profil & Loss af Tl

e. Tax Rate for Corporate Entity :
The Company has decided o opl for lhe reduced corporate tax rales. Accordingly, lhe Company has recognised provision for income tax as per
the provisions of Ihe relevant section.

9 Inventorles
(At tower of cost and net realisable value)

Land cost
Raw material

Construction work in praigress [Refer note 43)
Transferable Develop | Rights

Total

Note:
Refer Note 46 for details of inventory held as security against borrowings.

10 Cash and Cash equlvalents

Balances with banks.
In curenl accounls*
Fixed deposits {with original maturity for ihree months or less)
(refer note {ii) below)

Cash on hand
Tolal

Notes:

i} Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on lhe immediate cash requiremenis of the
Company and earns interest at the respeciive shorl-term deposil rates.

i} *Includes % 125.13 lakhs (P,Y. Rs.2,284.13 lakhs) held in escrow account for a projeci under Real Estate {Regulation and Development) Act, 2016
{"RERA"}). The money can be utilised for payments of the specified projects.

i)y  The fair value of Fixed deposits are approximalely the carrying value presenied.

11 Bank balances
(Other than cash and cash equlvalents)

Fixed deposils
With maturity for more Than thres months but less than twelve months)

Note:
The fair value of Bank balances {Other than cash and cash equivalenis) are approximalely the carmying value presenied.
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12 Curmrent Loans

Inter Cbrggr__g_lgwgegggﬁ {Refer note 33).
Total

Note :
Inter corporate deposils given lo related parties are repayable on demand (refer note 33)
Zin Lakhs % in Lakhs

Promoters . . - = 0% — 0%
Directors - 0% - 0%
KMP's - 0% - 0%
Related Parties 69,041.23 100% 67,472.00 100%

13 Other Cumrent Financlal Assets

(Unsecured considered good unless olherwise siated)

To related parties

Security Deposils refer note (i) below)
Inferest accrued bul not dus on ICD.
Olher receivables

To parties other than relaled parties
Securily Depaslis {refer note (1) belaw)
Loons and advances o employees
Interest accrued bul not due
Loan processing fees
Oiher receivables
Total

Note:
i} Security deposils are towards utility deposits, earnest money deposits and towards other deposits which are repayable on demand
i) The fair value of Other Cumrent Financial Assets are approximately the camying value presented.

14 Other Curmrent Assets

Note:

Advances against Land/TDR/Goods/Expenses are lowards purchase commitmenis, are non - interest bearing in nature and shall be setlled against
fulure purchase of such assets.
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15 Share Capital

2 in Lakhs

Authorised Share Capital
50,00,00,000 (31 March 2024: 50,00,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

29,00,00,000 (31 March 2024: 29,00,00.000) Compulscrily convertible preference shares series | of Rs. 10 each
21,00,00,000 (31 March 2024: 21,00,00,000) Compulscrily convertible preference shares series Il of Rs. 10 each

Total
Issued, Subscribed and Fully pald-up equity shares

40,62,20,000 (31 March 2024: 40,62,20,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each
Total

a. Reconclliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and al the end of the reporting year.

Z in Lakhs
As ot o Asaf =
March)31, 2025 : ! March:31,12024

Althe beginning of Ihe year ] LR | 022 4062 4060200
Issued during the year : E C | -
Oufstanding at the end of the year . 4 0,000  40,622.00 40,62,20,000 40,622.00

b. Terms / rights attached to equity shares
i} The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

iy In the event of liquidation of the Company the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in propertion te the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

ii) The Company has fully paid up equity shares of face value INR 10 (Rupees Ten Only) each, having full voting and dividend rights. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annucl General Meeting, except in case of interim
dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assels of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

c. Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equily shares of 2 10 each fully paid

Runwal Developers Private Limited 20,31,10,000 50.00%
Galleria Retalil Private Limited 20,31,10,000 50.00%
Total 40, 000 100.00%

d Details of shares held by promoters

0.00%
0.00%

20,31,10,000

Runwal Developers Private Limited
20,31,10,000 |

Total

There is no change in promoters shareholding during curent year

16 Other Equity
g in Lakhs

Securities preimum (Refer note below) 36,354.90
Retained earnings (refer note below) 2,189.04) _(32,001.58)

Total

% in Lakhs

Lr[lﬂ]l:l!ﬁ‘_ht

. Securitles Premlum(refenof I) below)
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Security preimum during the year

36,354.90

Closing Balance 2,90 36,354.90

Security premium represents the difference between fair value and face value on the conversion of the compulsorily convertible preference shares
series | and II. The fair valuation is based on the valuation performed by a third party registered valuer

2 in Lakhs

. Retained earnings (refer note (1) below)
Balance at the beginning of the year
Profit/(loss) for the year
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax)
ClosIng Balance

(32,001.58)

i) Retained earnings represent the amount thal can be distributed as dividend considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, During the year.
o dividends are distributed to the equity shareholders by the Company.
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17 Other Non Current Financial Liabilities

2 in Lakhs

Security deposit received from related party (Refer note 33)

Total

18 Non-current Provisions
Zin Lakhs

Employee Benefifs - ' ' ] =i ' . o

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 34) 33.65
Provision for Leave Encashment (Refer Note 34] o o 17.43
Total 51.08

19 Curmrent Borrowings

Secured
Bank Overdroft (Refer note 44)

Lol

20 Trade Payables
T in Lakhs

Trade payables

- Total ouistanding dues of micro and smail enterprises 212.72
- Tofal outstanding dues of credifors ofher than micro and small enierprises 1,472.83
Retention money

- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 80.47
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enferprises 1,462.74

Total 3.228.76

Note:

i)  The fair value of frade payables are approximately the carrying value presented.

iij Retention money is collected and retained based on various terms and conditions agreed upon with the contractors. In various
instances, retention money is payable when the milestone of the entire set of services is completed and that too with a covenant
that it will be paid after a period which ranges between 3 to 5 years, if no deficiency is found during this specified period towards the
services which were rendered by them, Hence, practically it is difficult to extract the ageing of retention money.

iy For Ageing of payables refer note 45 and for transactions with related parties & balances payable to Related Parties refer note 33.

iv) Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. (refer
note 44)
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21 Other Current Financial Liabilities
g in Lakhs

To parties ofher than related p

Saclary and bonus paydble 3.66
Interest accrued but not due -
Total 3.66
Note:

The fair value of Other Current Financial Liabilities are approximately the carrying value presented.

22 Other Curnrent lLiabilities

2 in Lakhs

To parties other than related parties

Stalutory dues payable - o - B 228.48
Advance from customers (refer note below) B S 95.280.14
95.508.62

Note:

i) A Contract liability is the obligation fo transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or
amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pay consideration before the Company transfer goods or services to
the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs its obligation under the contract.

i)  Refer note 37
i)  Refer note 46 for details of advance from customers held as security against borrowings.

23 Current Provisions

Zin Lakhs

Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 34)
Provision far Leave Encashment (Refer Note 34)

3.40
6.80

Total
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24 Revenue from Operations

% in Lakhs

Income from lease rental (Refer note 37)

Other operating revenue (Refer note below) 76.58
Total 76.70
Note:

Other operating revenue comprises of income towards cancellation charges, interest on delayed payment from customers, cheque
bounce charges etc.

25 Other income

Interest income

On fixed deposits ___| 245.49
On other deposits 2.56
OnICD 276
Others 4.04
Gain on derecognistion of lease - =
Miscellaneous income 13.24
Sundry balances written back 6.34
Total 274.43
26 Cost of construction and development expenses
% in Lakhs

Cost of construction and developmeni expenses ) 30,316.58 21,336.90
Total 30,316.58 21,336.90

27 Changes in inventories of work in progress and transferable development rights

g in Lakhs
Inventories at the beginning of the year (refer note below)
Land cost 11,803.02 11,803.02
Construction WIP 50,469.55 29,132.65
62,272.57 40,935.67
Inventories at the end of the year
Land cost 21,405.24 11,803.02
Construction WIP 69,340.97 50,469.55
Transferable Development Rights 1.842.94 -
] 92,589.15 62,272.57
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods, work in progress (30,316.58) (21,336.90)

and stock in tfrade

28 Employee Benefits Expense

2 in Lakhs

1419.67
26.76

Salaries, Wages & Bonus —
Confributions to Provident & Other Funds

Sriiyeberacs \REerinole o) . -
Expenses related to compensated absences (Refer note 34) NS 1194
Staff welfare expenses 16.95
R : ! .
Tmfer_re_d ’[Sﬂnsfrucﬂop work in progress B - (990.33)
Total 510.92
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29 Finance Costs
g in Lakhs

cost

t on financial liability measu

Interest cos red at amorlised

On bank overdraft 092
lease liabilities (Refer note 3) 17.35
Other Finance charges = 9.23
27.50
Transferred to construction work in progress N [27.09)
Total B 0.41
30 Depreciation and Amorisation Expense

% in Lakhs

Depreciation on property, plant and equipmem(refe no)

1512

Depreciation of Right-to-use asset (Refer Note 3) - 125.47

== — = 14059

Transferred to construction work in progress. (138.06)
2.53

Total

3

pute]

Other Expenses

e_cm(:ity charges

16.62

Repairs and maintenance

Insurance 0.21
Conveyance Expenses 48.49
Rates and taxes 0.74
Rent 0.04
Legal and professional fees 49.14
Payment to Auditors (Refer note 47) 8.00
Adverlising and sales prometion 134.25
Broksrage commission =
Donation 6.00
_Hiring and Recuitment expenses 104.20
Facility Management 0.25
Miscellaneous expenses 10.45
Other outsourcing expenses 0.17

378.97
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32 Earnings per share

2 In Lakhs

Préﬁif{bssj afrar iax for the year
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year tewards basic and diluted

Nominal ¥Yalue of equity share - - o
Basic and Diluted EPS e

a Lst )
Ultimate holding company Runwal Bevﬂq&r_s_ﬂwqig I_J_rnrled tlnd&:!
Subsidiaries Histyle Retail Frivale Umited (Inefia) _

Runwal Retail Private Limited (india)

Galleria Retall Privale Limtied [India) L[i!L?ﬁ!h Oclober, 2023) N

Entity joim'ly controlled by M‘ﬂfqurbur Inveslmenl Limfad {Maurl‘liusl tT‘II a0tk Ochbsf 20?3_}
Galleda Relail Privole Limiied {India) [From 30th Oclaber. 2923}

P Mall Developers Pt. Lid o

Entities over which one or more Key Management Personnel (*KMP") or Dhruva Woallen Mills Private Limited®

their relatives have significant influénce / control / joint control Galleria Relail Put Lid

Enfities having significant influence over the Company have significant Rurwal Construction Privale Limiled (w.e.f. &ih July 2023

influence / control / Joint control through voting power or otherwlse | Runwal Consiructions** (1 5th July 2023] -

\Rupri Consultancy Private Limited (w.e.f. 8ih Novemiber 2024)
Aelhion Developers Privale Limited

Runwal Hotels Private Lirnited (w.e.l. élh March 2025
R Siddhatva Developers Private Limited (w.e.f. 17th February 2024)
Key Management Personnel Mr, Sandeep Runwal [uplo 23rd Bcfoberm}

Mr, Anigh Saraf (uple 20th Oclober, 2023}

| Mr. Swapnil Sinha [Upfo 20ih Oclober, 2023]
Ms. Sangeela Prasod (uplo 171h February, 2024)
Mr. Ashok G. Darak [w.e.f. 20ih October 2023 (il 23 Decemiber 2024)

Mrs. Pallavi Matkar {w.e.f. 17 February 2024 uplo 17th FEM 2025)

Mr. Sunil Satvikar {w.e.l. 171h February 2024 {ill IIII 30 July 2025)

s, Sulato Rao [w.2.l. Bih November 2024)
Mr. Yogesh Bana (w.e.f. 251h July 2025)

Company Secretary ‘L‘&;Nkﬁﬂ Mehia (w.e.f. 15th July 2023 fill 241h January 2025)
Mr. Sariay Jha (w.e.t. 1 11h Febrary 2025)
Relative of Key Management Persons Mirs. Chando 5. Runwal

Mr. Sourabh 5 Runwal

“Dhruva Wollen Mils Pei L1a mergad wilh Runwal Developer Pl Lid w.e.1. 13,08 2024, oppainied dale being 01 ,04,.2023.
** Runwal Consiructions converted to Runwal Construction Private Limited w.e.f 06.07.2023

b Related parly ir " are as k

Runwal Qvnstruc@ angjs Limfied
Inter te deposit
Hislyle Retail Private Limited

Galleria Relail Frivate Limiied | 11,475.00
Private s |

Runwal Construction Private timiied
- Rupri Consullancy Private Limiled

R Mall Reveloper Frivale Limitsd
Infer corporate deposit received back | — = ]
H@ﬂa_aemn Privale Limited ' _ a00000 |
Aethon Davelopers Privale Limitsd
Runwal Canstruction Private Limfied .

[Fuprd Consultancy Private Limited ) I
R Moll Developers Frivale Limiled - . - i — i ——
‘Aethon Developers Frivale Limiled. —
Runwol Developers Privale Limifed o i
Sale of OCD of ADPL o N | I —
R Mall Developers Private Limiled - | ]

‘Advance Securlly deposil received N )

F Mol Davelopers Privale Limiled

_gdmnu Security depositrepaid =~ B

‘R Mall Developess Private Limiled =
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Totty 1 S ST - - L
Runwal D_QM Private Limited i 5 - [ 1,272.63 |
__A_g\_rg;_';cg salary to Pallavi Matkari f Il
Loan repaid = < o !
Runwal Developers Private Limited . ] 1 - 1.272.63
Tmmr of Shares to | 1

= Harbor inves ’ . 20,311.00

Gallerin Retail Private Limlied {from’

a-um1 nevmg Privals Limilzd Galls PviLig] 1 1.00
.00

. deposit and brokerage to Palla

‘Aethon Da\eelog ers Pyl Lid
Interest income from Inter corporate deposit _ _
Histyle Retail Private Limited (including of TDS) .
Reimbursement of SAP software cost ==
Histyle Retail Private Limited ) =
Salary to Key Man  Pers
Pallavi Ganesh Matkari
Mirall Mehta

' Sanjay Jha
Salary to relatives of Key Management Person®
Saurabh Runwal

2.76

23.60

90.55
1161

¢ Related parly bal are as foll

Inter corporate deposits
Hisfyle Retall Privale Umited
Galleria Retail Private Limitied
Runwal Construction Private Umiled
Rupri Cansulfancy Private Lmiled
deposit recelved
R Mall D Privale LErnHed
Investment in Subsidiaries
Histyle Retail Frivate I.Imrgd o
Funwal Retall Privale Limi
Interest recelvable (excl. TDS)
Hislyle Retall Privale Limiled
Reimbursement of SAP software cosl receivable

21.000,00

4199.68
23.40

Hislyle Relall Private Limited -
Other Recelvables

Runwa! Developers Private Limited

Runwal Constructions
Aethon Developers Pyl Lid
Pallavi Matkari

Deposit Lease Rental glven

Mrs Chanda §_ Runwal

* As gratuity and compensaled absences are compuled for all the employees in aggregate, Ihe amounts relaling to the Key Managerial Person cannot be individually identified.

- During the curent year R Retail Ventures Private Limiled has withdrawn corporate guarantee for cost overrun, project complelion, cash shortfall and subordination underiaking
to Ihe lender for the borrowings made by the subsidiary company Histyle Retail Private Limiled.

The fransactions with related parties are made on terms equivalenl io those that prevail in arm's length fransactions. This assessment is undertaken each financial year ihrough
examining the financial position of the related party and the markel in which Ihe relaled party operates.

Note: The company is engaged in providing infrasiructure facililies as specified in Schedule VI of the Companies Aci 2013, thus, 1he provisions of section 186 except sub-seclion (1)
of Ihe Act are nol applicable to the Company, The Company has given an inler corperate deposit 1o Histyle Retail Private Limited, camying an interesi rate of 0.01% p.a. w.e.f
1.04.2023 and being repayable on demand.
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34 Employee benefils
(a) Contributions to Deflned Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for the year are as vunder :

W gt T R | e, 5 O Ol 6=

Employer's coniribution fo deeiun ]

Employer's contribution lo ESIC
Labour welfare fund conlribulion for workmen
Total

{b) Defined benefit plans
) Gratulty (unfunded)
Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on retirement, death, permanent disablement and resignation In terms of the provision of the
Payment of Gratulty Act 1972. Beneflts would be paid at the time of the separation.

Changes In the present value of the deflned benefit obligation are as follows :

| Changelinp t value of defined benefit obllgation during the year

2 in Lakhs

1 Present Value of defined benefit oblipation at 1he be:
2lInterestcosl - S——
3 Cunrenl service cost
4 Past service cost
5 Labiiity fransterred In/Acquisitions
& Liabllity Transferred out / Divestment
7 Benedils paid direcily by employer
8 Beneilts paid
9 ‘Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions
10 Actuarial changes arising from changes In financial assumptions
11 Actuarial changes arising from changes In experience adjustments
12 Present Value of defined benefit obligaiion at the end of the year

Il Net asset / (llabllity) recognised In the balance sheet

| Present Value of defined benefil obligation at the end of the year
2 Falrvdlue of plon assels af the end of The year

3 Amounl recogriised in the balance sheel
4 Net (llability)/ assef- Current {3.40}
5 Net (llabilily)/ asset- Non-current (33.45)

Il Expenses recognised In the statement of profit and loss for the year

1 Cunenl service cosl
2 Interes| cos! en benefit obligation [Net]
3 Tolal expenses included In employee benefils expense

IV Recognised In other comprehensive Incore (OCI) for the year

1 Acfuarial (Gain)/Losses on Obligation for he year

1.1 Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions

1.2 Actuarial changes arising from changes In linancial assumptions 1.02

1.3 Acluarial changes arising from changes In experience adjusimenis (8.53]
2 Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income -
4 Change in Asset Ceiling .
4 Recognised In ofher comprehensive Income 17.51),
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34 Employee benefits (Contd...}

Vi Maturity proflle of defined benefit obligation

1 Within fhe next 12 monlhs [nexi annual rep

2 2nd Following Year

3 3rd Following Year
4 41h Following year
5 5th Following year
& Sum of years éth |o 10 years
7 Sum ol 11 years and above

Vit The Princlple Actuarlal Assumptions used are as follows:

. BO0R
Indian Assured Lives
Mortality 2012-14 (Urban)
N.A,
For service 4 years and
below 10.00% p.a.
For service 5 years and
i above 2.00% p.a.

Marlaiity post rellrement rate

Rale of Employee Tumover

Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

The salary escalation rate is amived after taking into consideration the senlority, the promotion and other relevant factors, such as, demand and supply in
employment market.

VIH Sensltivity Analysls:
The senslfivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occuming at the end of the reporting perlod, while
holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis Is given below:

2 In Lakhs

Discouni Rate
Salary Growth Rate B
Affrifion Rate

10.32) 0.36

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the Defined Benefit Obligation as it Is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be comelated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitlvity analysis, the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation as recognised in the balance
sheet.

Note:
The actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were camied out at March 31, 2025. The present value of the Defined Benefit
Obligation and the related cument service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

IX__Risks associated with defined benefit plan N

Interest Risk: A fall In the discount rate which Is lirked lo the government securities rate will Increase the present value of the llability
requiring higher provision.

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference tao the future salares of members. As such,

an Increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will Increase the plan's liability.

Asset liabllity matching risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. enfify has to manage pay-out based on pay as you go basls from
own funds.

Mortality risk: Since the benetits under the plan is not payable for life ime and payable fill refirement age only. plan does not have any
ongevity risk.

¢ Compensated Absences
The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences as per the policy of the Company.

¥ in Lakhs

ﬁflin[ah as at h

eﬂn&d
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35 Contingent Liabilities
The Company has evaluated following contingent liabililies as at March 31, 2025, that will materially impact the operations or materially

affect the financial conditions or liquidity.

Income Tax Demand Total

Carmrylng amount as at 1st April 2023
Arising during the year
Settled/freversed

Carrylng amount as at 31st March 2024
Arising during the year
Settled/reversed

Carrying amovunt as at 31st March 2025 154.52 154.52

154.52 154.52

The Income-Tax authorities (‘the department') had conducted search activity during the month of October 2023 al some of the
premises, site and residences of few of the employees of the Group. The Company extended full cooperation to the Income-tax
officials during the search and provided required details, clarifications, and documents. The liabilities as assessed by the department is
Rs. 154.52 lakhs for various financial years which the Company has appealed against with CIT (A).

36 Segment Reporting
Description of segments and princlpal activities
The reportable segments of the Company are ‘Real Estate Business'.

The Company is in the business of Real Estate Development of a commercial and residential premises in Pune, Maharashtra. There is no
other activities being carmied out by the company. Geographically, the development is being carmied out only in India, and there are no
sales outside this teritory. Thus, there is only one geography which is India.

37 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
{a) The amount of  Nil recognised in contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period has been recognised as revenue during the

year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 .
{b) Significant changes in contract asset and contract liabilities balances are as follows:

% in Lakhs

P&l'!luuldri ’ i
Contract liabllity _ o

Change due to collechon o If
‘Change due to revenue recorded - iy

At the end of the reporting pericd i
Contract liabilities represent amounts collected from customers based on contractual milestones pursuant to agreements executed
with such customers for construction and sale of residential units. The terms of agreements executed with customers require the
customers to make payment of consideration as fixed in the agreement on achievement of contractual milestones though such
milestones may not necessarily coincide with the point in time at which the Company transfers control of such units to the customer. The
Company is liable for any structural or other defects in the residential units as per the terms of the agreements executed with customers
and the applicable laws and regulations.

.-
41.409.15

‘?5.280.1&

(c

{d) The Company expecis to satisfy the said performance obligations when (or as) the underlying real estate projects to which such
performance obligations relates are completed. Such real estate projects are in various stages of development as at March 31, 2025.

Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company revenue from contracts with customers by timing of transfer of goods or services.
7 in Lakhs

Forlhe yearended  Forihe yearended' |
. 2025  March 31,2024

(e

Particulars
Timing of fransfer of goods or services - .

7670

 or services hiansferred overlime g : -

Revenue from go

{f) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in Profit and Loss
The following table discloses the reconciliation of amount of revenue recognised as al March 31, 2025

Z i Lakhs

;Fﬁmi‘;.ﬂ_lﬁrf
Conlract price of the revenue recognised o |
Adjusiments - -

Discount I S
Revenue from Coniracis with Customers BN RS

[g) Assets recognised from the costs to obtain or fulfil a contract with a customer
2 in Lakhs
fPeticulrs Mareh31,2024  Mareh 31, 2024
Brokerage cosls perfalning fo sale of residential units ] ans =
Defearred Bmkemge Ouistanding af Balance Sheet Date | A768.58. 4,357.41

{h) The transaction price of the remaining performance obligations as at March 31, 2025 % 1,35,388.08 lakhs. The same is expected to be
recognised within 1 to 5 years.

il Revenue from major customer {more than 10% of turnover)
Revenue from one customer is  NIL for the year ended March 31, 2025 constituted more than 10% of the total revenue of the Company. =
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38 The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2025

1) [CumentRatio :

Current Assets (a)

Current Liabilities {b)

Current Ratio {a/b)

Times

Numerator - Total Current Assets

___Denominatoer - Total Curent Liabililies
) Debi-Equity Rafio :
Total debt (a) =
Sharsholder's Equity 6]
Debt - Equity Ratio (a/b)] o
Numerator - Total Debt {Current Borowings +
Non-Curent Borowings] o
Denominator - Shareholder's Equity {Total
Equity}

) Debt Service cmrage Ratlo :

Earnings available for Debt service (a)
Debt Service (b)

Debt Service coverage Ratio (a/b)

{Profit/{loss) after tax + Finance cost +
Depreciation and amortisation expense+other
adjustments like loss on sale of fixed assets}

Numerator - Earnings available for debt service

|Times

Denominator - Interest + Principal Payment +
Lease payment

Iv

-

Return on Equity Ratio :
Praofit/{lnss) for the year (o)

Average Shareholder's Equity (b)

Return on Equity Ratio {a/b)

%

Numerator - Profit/{loss) for the year

Denominator - Average Shareholder's Equity
= {Opening Shareholder's Equity + Closing
Shareholder's Equity}/2

Shareholder’s Equity = Equity share capital +
Other equity

v) |Inventory Turnover Ratio :

Cost of Goods Sold (a}
Average Inventory (b)

Inventory Turnover Ratio (a/b)
Numerator - Cost of Goods Sold

Denominator - (Opening Inventory + Closing
Inventory}/2

Times.

vl) |Trade Recelvables turnover Ratio :

Net Credit Sales (a)

Average Accounts Receivable (b}

Trade Receivables turnover Ratio {a/b]

Times

Numerator - Revenue from operations{on
credit)

Denominator - (Opening frade receivable +
(_Zlosing trade receivablel /2

1.19.884.05

% in Lakhs

98,847.27

1.21 0.04

4497532

- 0.03 100.00%

Bank overdaft facility availed

C7s217)
148.57

during the year

15.06] 315

_{62.1’0%'1‘ Defemred tax assets created during

the current year on carried forward
business loss which resulted in to
decraasa in loss after tax for the
year

(755 11)
45.350.07

(1.67%) 0.1 (73.75%)

0.00%

Deferred tax assets created during
the current year on camied forward
business loss which resulted in to
decrease in loss after tax for the
year

Mot applicable

0.00%

Not applicable
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The following are analytical ratios for the year ended 31st March 2025

vll) |Trade Payables turnover uﬂo B

Cost of Goods Sold (a)

Average Trade Payable (b)

Trade Payables turnover Ratio {a/b})

Numerator - COGS {Cost of Material Consumed
+ Changes in inventories of finished goods and
construction work-in-progress)

BTsnominctor - (Opening Trcd_eEochE+
Closing trade payables)/2

_Times

vill

=

Net Capltal turnover Ratio :

Revenue from Operations {a)

Working Capital {b)

Net Capital turnover Ratio {a/b)

Times

Numerator - Revenue from Operations

Denominator - working capital = curent assets -
Curmrent Liabilities

Ix) |Net Profit Ratio :

Profit/(loss) for the year (a)

Net turnover (b}

Net Profit Ratio {a/b}

%

Numerator - Prafit/{lass) for the year

Denominator - Net turnover

x) |Return on Capltal Employed :

Earnings before Interest and Taxes (a}

Capital Employed [b]

Return on Capital Employed (a/bj)

Numerator - Earnings before Interest and Tax
{Profit / (Loss) before tax + Finance cost}

Denominator - Capital Employed {Net worth +
Total Debt+Deferred tax liability}

xI) |Return on Investment :

Income earned on investments (a)

Average Investment for the period (b)

Return on Investment {a/b)

Numerator - Income earned on investments

Denominator - Average Investment for the
vear

1.614.38

- E 0

Not applicable

76.70

21.036.78

0.00 (0.00) (49.44%)

Increase in working capital due to
increase in loan to related parties

(755.11)

76.70

{9.84) 6.89 (69.99%)

Decraase in loss due to increase

defe i fax assets

{541.29)

44,975.32

{0.01) {0.00) 20.86%

0.36 10.32) (91.07%)

Thete are decrease interest on
fixed deposit and increase in
investment as compared to
previous year
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39 Fair valves Disclosure

a The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2025 is as follows :

Financial assets

Non-current

Other financial assets - 148.86 |
Current
Loans - 69,041.23

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Bank balances other than above

1,051.32

Other Financial Assets

Total

Financial liabilities
Current
Bomowings .

Trade Payables
Other Financial Liabilities

Total

Fair Value Hierarchy:

Assets measured at fair value

Investments

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

b The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2024 is as follows :

Financial assets

% in Lakhs

Non-current

Loans - 27.991.00
Other financial assets = 52.00 |
Current
Loans - 39,481.00

- 4,800.42

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Bark balances other than above - 33.18
Other Financial Assets - 4,433.90
Total - 76.791.50 |
Financial liabilifies

Non-current

Other Financial Liabiiifies - 21,000.00
Current

Lease Liabilities - 99.43
Trade Paydbles - 3,228.76
Other Financial Liakilities = 3.66 |
Total - 24,331.85 |

Fair Value Hierarchy:

Assets measured at fair value
Investments
Level |
Level 2
Level 3
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40

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instrument by valuation
technique:

The fair value of financial instruments are classified into three categories i.e. Level 1, 2 or 3 depending on the inputs used in the
valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities (Ievel
1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs {level 3 measurements).

The hierarchies used are as follows:

* Level 1: Quoted prices for identical instruments in an active market;

¢ Level 2: Directly or indirectly observabie market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

¢ Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data

Fair valve of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
curent fransaction between wiling parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The camrying amounts of trade payables, borrowings, lease liabilities, loans, other financial liabilities, other financial assets and cash
and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortised cost, the camying amounts are not materially different from their
respective fair values.

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to
maximise the shareholder value.

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the retum on capital as well as the level of dividends to
ordinary shareholders.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

Zin Lckhs

i i =
artic Asat  Asat

[Pt March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Borromngs (Note 19) ‘ ' / -
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Nofe 10) 4.509,_4_2_
Less: Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents (Nate 11 ' 3318
Net debt (A) (4,833.60)

40,622.00

Equity (Note 15)

Ofher equity (Note 16) | _4,353.32
Total equity (B) - B . - | 44,975.32
Cocin [10.75%)

Gearing ratio |

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing ioans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches
in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borowing in the current year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2025.
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41 Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies

The Company’s risk management acfivities are subject o the management direction and control under the framework of Risk Management Policy as
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Management ensures appropriate risk governance framework for the Company through
appropriate policies and procedures and the risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives.

The Company's financial liabilities comprises mainly of borrowings including interest accrual, frade, and other payables. The Company’s financial assets
comprise mainly of investments, loans, cash and cash equivalents and other balances with banks.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is exposed to Market risk, Credit risk and Liquidity risk.

(i) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk

comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, curency risk and commodity risk.

(a)

(b)

Currency Risk
Currency risk is not material, as the Company's primary business activities are within India and does not have significant exposure in foreign currency.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in marke! interest rates.
The management is responsible for the monitoring of the Company's interest rate position. Various variables are considered by the management in
structuring the Company's borrowings to achieve a reasonable, competitive cost of funding.

Exposure to Interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management is as follows:
 in Lakhs

[T A
(Feseiany

Financial llablilties

Variable rate instruments o i - —
Fixed rate instruments

flﬂﬁcﬁass?ls

Fixed rate instruments 67,756.41

67,756.41

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest
rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensltivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rate would have resulted in variation in the interest expense for the Company by the
amounts indicated in the table below. Given that the Company capitalises interest to the cost of inventory to the extent permissible, the amounts
indicated below may have an impact on reported profits over the life cycle of projects to which such interest is capitalised. This calculation also
assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The year
end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

2 in Lakhs

Parliculars

Financial Liablittles
Variable rate instruments
Bomowings
Cash flow sensitivity (net) T =]

11,33 - -

(ii) Credit risk .
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, security deposits, loans to

employees and other financial instruments.

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

a)

Other Financial Assets

This comprises of deposit with banks, loans, security deposits and other receivables. The company limits its exposure to credit risks arising from these
financial assets and there is no collateral held against these because counter parties are group companies, banks and recognised financial
institutions. Banks and recognised financial institutions have high credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies,
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(i) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows. This monitoring includes financial ratios
and takes into account the accessibility of cash and cash equivalents.

The Company has access to funds from debt markets through loan from banks, commercial papers and other debt
instruments. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposits.

Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

in Lakhs

i s e A e | b il
Barrowings [refer note 19) | 11337 113337 |
Trade Payables (refer note 20] 416774 | 156047 | 2,607.27
Other Financial Liabilllies [refer note 17 & 21) 31.34 B 31.34 - -
Total 5,332.45 2,725.18 2,607.27

Trade Payables (refer note 20) 3,228.76 1,685.55
Lease Liabifies - 99.43 99.43 e by
Other Financial Liabilities [refer note 17 & 21) 21,003.66 21.003.66 =

Total 24,331.85 22,788.64 1,543.21 - 24,331.85

\‘?."',
HBA \).7-\;

/S
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42 Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of the Company's Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about ihese
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the camying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances existing when the
financial statements were prepared. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing kasis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognised in the year
in which the estimates are revised and in any future year affected.

43 Construction Work In Progress includes

Approval Fees
Employee Cost
Finance Cost
Labour
Professional fees

Others . ) . ! 1
Total 14.2 50,469.55

4

H

Details of due to micro and small enterprises {"MSME")
On the basis of the Information and records available wilh management, detalls of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 are as below:

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end.
Injerest due thereon

Amount of interest paid in ferms of section 16 of the MSMED, along with the amouni of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appoinied day during the accounting year.

Amount of interest due and payable for ihe period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the pericd) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED.

Amount of interes! accrued and remaining unpaid al ihe end of the accounting year.

Amounl of further inferes! remaining due and payable even in succeeding years.

Disclosure of outstanding dues of micro and small enterprise under trade payables is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of the
suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Ouistanding includes dues to micro and small enterprises on account of
deficiency in service/ products/ documents. In such cases, inferest has not been provided on these overdue amounts, This fact has also been disclosed in the MSME form |
{return) filed on half yearly basis by the Company with ROC. This has been relied upon by the auditor.

45 Trade payable ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2025
¥ In Lakhs

1!MSME - 185.96 258.99 - - -

2 Others 342,49 87.77 424.69 1.52 - 279.05

3|Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - E

4|Disputed dues - Others - = = - = =
Total 342.49 253.73 683.67 1.52 - 279.05 ;

As at March 31, 2024

2 Others — 27083, - 1 272.56
3| Disputed dues - MSME = - _—. = J - .
 4|Disputed dues - Others E | = B
Total 270.83 = 485.28 26.72

Retention money is collected and retained based on various terms and conditions agreed upon with the contractors, In various instances, retention money is payable when
the milesione of the entire set of services is completed and that toc with a covenant that it will be paid ofter o period which ranges between 3 to 5 years, if no deficiency is
found during this specified period towards the services which were rendered by them. Hence, practically it is difficult to extract the ageing of relention money.
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48 Details of Subsidiaries

| : . As at As at

| Name of Subsidiaries Place of Business Nature of Business March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Histyle Retail Private Limited India Leasing Activity 100% 100%
Galleria Retail Private Limited (upto October 25, 2023) India Real Estate - 100%
Aethon Developers Private Limited (Upto November 16, India Real Estate ) 100%
2023)

Runwal Retails Private Limited India Real Estate 100% -

49 Other Statutory Information
1 No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

2 The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

3  The company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

4  The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies
[Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

5 The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current financial year or
previous financial year.

6  There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

7 The company has not fraded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

8 The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during
the current or previous year.

9  The company has not been revalued its invetment property during the current or previous year.

10 The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Infermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shail:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
party (Ultimate Beneficiaries} or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behdalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

During the previous year, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries) except for amount of Rs.
28,000.00 lakhs advanced by the Company to Gailleria Retail Private limited as Intercorporate deposit in the month of October
2023. During the previous year a fellow subsidiary of the Company Galleria Retail Private Limited acquired shares of the Company
from White Harbour Investment Limited {Ultimate Beneficiary) on 30th October 2023 by utilising the above funds.

11 The fitle deeds of all the immovable property (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the lessee}, as disclosed in note 4, to the financial statements, are held in the name of the company.

12 There are no charges or safisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

13 The borrowings obtained by the company from bank have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were was taken.
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50 The Company uses an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)

51

facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software.
Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of the accounting software and the audit trail has
been preserved as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

Recent Pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.

The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide nofification dated August 12, 2024, under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or

after April 01, 2024,
On September 09, 2024, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 116 concerning sale and leaseback transactions.

The amendments to Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates specify how an entity should assess whether a currency
is exchangeable and how it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also require
disclosure of information that enables users of its financial statements to understand how the cumrency not being exchangeable into the
other currency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity's financial performance, financial position and cash flows. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2025. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot restate
comparative information.

The amendments did not have a material impact on the financial statements.

52 Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’)

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received
Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will
come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact
of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

53 Subsequent Events

The scheme of merger by absorption of Galleria Retail Private Limited {the 'Transferor) with the Company (the ‘Transferee') has been
approved in the Meeting of Board of Directors held on May 6, 2024. The appointed date for the Merger is October 30, 2023. In this
connection, a joint application by Transferor and Transferee Company was made to National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) on June 14,
2024, The application filed is pending with NCLT as on the date at which the financial statements were made available to be issued.

54 Previous year numbers have been re-classified/re-grouped to conform the cumrent year's classification.

As per our report of even date For and on behailf of the Board of Directors
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